October 26, 1973

 THE
INGING

OFFICIAL JOURNAL OF
THE CENTRAL COUNCIL
OF CHURCH BELL RINGERS

Vol. LXIX No. 3261 Registered at The Post Office
for transmission as a newspaper.

THIS YEAR OF 1973 is the 850th anni-
versary of the founding of “The Priory of
St. Bartholomew the Great”, Smithfield,
London, and therefore an appropriate time
for a short history to appear in The Ringing
World. The Priory was founded in 1123 by
Rahere, a courtier of King Henry I. It
was built as an Augustinian Priory and
remained so until the Dissolution of the
Monasteries in 1539. Afler a period of use
as a parish church, Queen Mary gave it to
the Dominican Friars, who on her death
in 1558 went quietly away. leaving the old
Priory to become once more a parish
church. The original building was construc-
ted in the Norman style and when finally
completed was about 350 ft. long. In addi-
tion to the church it had all the normal
monastic appendages. The present church
consists of the original choir plus the cross-
ing and one bay of the old nave, a fine
lady chapel, circa 1335, which is situated
behind the high altar and one side of a
cloister. Underneath the Lady Chapel is a
fine crypt, used at some time as a charnel
house.

St. Bartholomew’s Hospital was also
founded by Rahere, but due to continued
ill feeling between the two foundations they
soon parted company. However, they still
continued to wrangle and records show
that carly in the 13th century the Hospital
agitated to have more bells. The Bishop
decided that they should not have more
than two, that these should not be large
and that the Hospital was not to have a
belfry in the accustomed manner. Further,
that on Faster Eve they were not to ring
their bells before those at the Priory were
rung. Needless to say, at present relations
hetween the iwo foundations are of the
friendliest. The Hospital Church of St.
Bartholomew the Less has a tower contain-
ing three bells, two of which date from
1485: these are now chimed for Sunday
and other services.

Rahere also obtained from King Henry
the right to hold a fair in the vicinity of the
Priory on St. Bartholomew’s Day: this was
an important source of income for the
church. This fair was held annually from
1133 and in monastic times was the great
annual market for the woollen and cloth
trades of the country. Indeed, traders came
from the Continent to sell their wares. At
the Dissolution of the Priory, Henry VIl
THE PRIORY OF ST. BARTHOLOMEW THE GREAT, gave the rights of the fair to Lord Rich,

and Bart's Fair continued until 1854 when,
after a long decline, it died a natural death,
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OTHER FAMOUS FIGURES

Besides Rahere many other famous figures
of history have had associations with St.
Bartholomew's. Wat Tyler was smote down
by Walbrook before the great door of the
church. Was he finished off in the church
or hospital? — contemporary records are
divided. William Wallace, the Scottish pat-
riot, was hanged, drawn and quartered out-
side the west front during the height of
Bart’s Fair and Milton took refuge in the
precincts of the close during the early days
of the Restoration. Hogarth, the great
painter, was born, baptised and lived in the
parish. John Wesley preached many times
here and conducted weddings during the
period he was an unbeneficed and unlicensed
clergyman, whilst Benjamin Franklin, the
American statesman, worked as a journey-
man printer in the Lady Chapel during the
time of its secular use. Not to be forgotten
is that large army of people who, in de-
fence of their beliefs, perished by burning
at the stake during the reigns of the Tudors.
The stake was just outside the west en-
trance and it is reputed that Queen Mary
used to watch proceedings from a room
over the entrance gate.

The present tower was built in 1628 and
consists of four floors. From the outside
one sees a red brick tower with no interest-
ing architectural features. However, from
the inside it can be observed that the tower
is built on the old Norman arches and that
this Norman work continues up on three
sides of the tower as far as the ceiling of
the first floor, which is the ringing chamber.
Above this is the clock room. containing a
clock which was most likely installed when
the tower was built, and the bell chamber
is immediately above. A full list of the
names of those who subscribed to the build-
ing of this tower is still in existence and is
kept with the parish records.

Officers of the Central Council of Church Ball
Ringers

President: John Freesman.
Vice-President: Edwin A. Barnett.
Hon. Secretary: Cyril A. Wratten,

19 Ravensgate Road, Charlton Kings,
Cheltenham.
Librarian: Frederick Sharpe.
Darwen, Launton, Bicester, Oxon.

THE RINGING WORLD
PENMARK HOUSE, GUILDFORD, SURREY,
GU1 1BL (Tel. 69E35).

The official Journal of the Central Council
of Church Bell Ringers
|Founded by J. S. Goldsmith, proprigtor and
editor until his death in 1842.)
Editor: C. W. DENYER,
The Ringing World Committee: W. G. Wilson
(chairman), 42 Willow Grove, Ruislip Manor,
Middlesex; R. S. Anderson, D. A. Bayles,
R. F. B. Speed and Mrs. P. J. Staniforth.

POSTAL SUBSCRIPTION RATES

3 MONTHS

1 copy 2 pi 3 pi 4 pi

£1.25 £2.30 £3.50 £4.65
6 MONTHS

£2.25 £4.20 £6.40 £8.25
12 MONTHS

£4.20 £7.60 £11.60 £15.00

Additional copies over 4: 3 months, £1.05:
6 months, £1.85; 12 months, £3.40.

OVERSEAS RATES
Surface Mail £4.25
Air Mail £7.00

Remittances, payable to The Ringing World,
should be addressed to the Subscription Manager
(C. W. Lucas), The Ringing World, Penmark
House, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 1BL (Tel. 69535).

BOOK OF THE FOUNDATION

The first mention of bells at St. Bartho-
lomew’s is in the “Book of the Foundation”,
which records the story of Rahere’s conver-
sion and the building of the Priory; it also
gives a wonderful picture of life in the 12th
century. This book, which is written in
Latin, is now in the Cottonian Collection
at the British Museum. At the Dissolution
of the Monasteries the Priory possessed two
rings of bells; the heavier, a ring of six
with a tenor of a reputed weight of 36 cwt.,
was sold to St. Sepulchre’s. Unfortunately
they were run out during the Great Fire of
London. These bells are mentioned by
Stow in his survey of London, written in
1598. The lighter ring, the present bells,
are a complete ring of five medieval
bells, all cast by the same founder. They
bear the mark of Thomas Bullisdon, who
flourished in 1506 to 1510, and it is believed
that they were cast as parish bells at the
instance of Prior Bolton, the penultimate
holder of the office, who was connected
with the building of the Henry VII Chapel
at Westminster Abbey. Downman, in his
privately printed book of 1898, tabulates
over 20 Bullisdon bells which were then in
use in various parishes of England.

Individual descriptions of the bells are:
1.—Sancte Bartholemeo Ora Pro Nobis. Height

184", Dia. 22". Estimated weight 2 ocwt,
2.— Sancta Katerina Ora Pro Nobis. Height 20",
Dia. 24'. Est. weight 2 cwt. 3 ar.
3-—Sancta Anna Ora Pro Nobis, Height 214"
Dia. 261". Est. weight 3 cwt. 2 qgr.
4.—Sancte Johannes Baptiste Ora Pro Nobis.
Height 23". Dia. 29”. Est. weight 4 cwtl
1 qr.
5.—~Sa:cte Petra Ora Pro MNobis. Height 25",
Dia. 31". Est, weight 5 cwt. 2 qr.

Fach bell bears after the word Nobis a
shield with the trade mark of the founder,
a bell dependent from a fransverse beam
or stock with tha letter Tt in the field. Ex-
cept for the dedication of the treble bell,
to the patron saint of the Priory, it can
only be pure conjecture why the remaining
bells were given their dedications. Records
show that there were chapels to both St
Anne and St. Katherine and an image to
St. Peter in the old Priory but nothing to
connect with St. John the Baptist. The bells
are hung anti-clockwise in the original
wooden frame of 1628.

Since 1510 these sweet-toned bells have
been rung for services and to commemorate
the great events of history as they hap-
pened, and many of these are recorded in
the parish registers, together with the fees
paid to the ringers. One curious custom
was the annual commemoration of the
birthday of Queen Elizabeth I, which con-
tinued until 1708, and for this the ringers
were paid 2s. 6d. to be shared five ways.
These bells were rung to welcome the same
monarch on her visits to the City of Lon-
don and have also been rung to honour
and welcome the present Elizabeth II on
her visits.

Until 1814 the Priory possessed an old
sanctus bell, which was melted down in
that year to provide metal for a larger bell,
weighing 3 cwt. 2 gr. 22 Ib., to be used as
a clock bell, and this bell is still in use.
Unfortunately there is no record at the
church or at the foundry of the inscription
on this old bell. As far as is known there
have been only two peals rung on the bells
in their 460 years of use—the first rung by
the Middlesex C.A. in 1923 to celebrate the
800th anniversary of the Foundation, and
in 1956 by the Kent C.A. for the patronal
festival. Unfortunately, due to the nearness
of the hospital buildings to the tower, the

possibility of further peals is remote; how-
(Continued at foot of next column]
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SUFFOLK GUILD DINNER
THOSE ATTENDING

Seated at the top table were Mr. J. W. Blythe
(president) and Mrs. Blythe, the Bishop of
Edmundsbury, Mr. J. Freeman |[president, C.C.),
Mr. H. E. Egolestone (ringing master} and Mrs.
Egglestone, Mr. and Mrs. G. E. Symonds, Canon
and Mrs. Muxlow, Mr. and Mrs, G, W. Pipe,
Rev. L. R. Pizzey (hon. secretary), Mr. and Mrs.
E. Ambrose, Rev. and Mrs. G. Tarris, Mr. A. S.
Hudson and Mr. C. W, Denyer (R.W.).

Others present included Misses Edwards, R.
Frith, S. Potter, M. Carson, M. Brown, D.
Edwards, M. Newby, D. Stiliwell, M. Freeman,
0O, Bunn, P. Cutting, S. Geater, A, Richmond,
F. Franks, S. Ling, S. M. Pipe, R. Bedford, A.
E. Lester, J. Wightman.

Messrs. and Mesdames: T. N. Baiiey, P. 5.
Bedford, P. Lester, H. Wightman, R. W. Pipe,
J. B. Morley, R. Whittell, R. J. Munnings, E.
Saker, J. L. Girt, D. Knox, A, F, Peachey, C. W.
Pipe, R. Peters, P. Franks, A. Knights, R. W.
Steward, T. D. Hughes, H. Archer, C. S. Bloom-
field, E. J, Lockwood, E. R. Goate, A. Roberts,
B. Wells, L. Pidgeon, P. Eves, A. Britter, N.
Whittell, W. Perry, D. Reeve.

Messrs. A. Ballam, C. Nunn, A. Whitmoor, G.
Bryant, Thompson, B. Hunt, M. Sweetland, M.
Denton, P. Turner, P. Knott, P. Carson, K. Dakin,
P. Jefferies, B. Aikinson, J. Bunn, M. Beckett,
S. J. Bedford, B. Whiting, T. Franks, G. Finch,
A. S. Woodward, W. E. Pye, E. W. Pye., A.
Munnings, M. J. Peters, W, Barnes, E. F. Gilbert,
S. J. Twitchett, K. Whittell, M. J. Howes, N. P.
Cossey, W. J. Button, L. G. Brett, J. B. Pickup,
Revs. R. Pallant, B. Redgers, Drs. 5. Hancock,
P. Franks.

Mesdames M. Farnie, A. Hudson, G. Atkinson,
P. Franks, G. Sidey, B. Jennings, J. Lester.

* DELIGHT” PUBLICATIONS

@ A BELLRINGER'S GUIDE TO CHURCH
BELLS—R. H Dova. 4th Edition

{a) Cloth back, board sides 63p
(b} Cloth cased 80p
{c} Board sides, interleaved £1.00
Postage, etc., (a) and (b) 9p, (¢} 12p.

@ BELLRINGERS® CAR BADGE

Bell and Headstock design in silver on
dark blus ground. Heavily chromed
surround with domed perspex cover.
Complete with screws for fixing. £2.75

including postage and packing.

@ THE 'DELIGHT' LOOSE LEAF RECORD
BOOKS FOR BELLRINGERS

for Tower or Personal use as
Peal and Quarter Peal Record Book
Record Book for Towers Visited
Tower Peal Record and Visitors Book

Send for free sample sheets and prices.

@ HOME BINDER FOR “RINGING
WORLDS"™

for binding up a vear's “Rinaing Worlds"
at home: £1.00 and £1.25 plus 19p
postage and packing.

Obtainable only from—

WILLIAMH VIGGERS
37. HIGHFIELD GARDENS, ALDERSHOT

ever, quarter peals are frequently rung for
services.

William Laughton and his Rambling
Ringers rang at Bart’s in 1734, and an ex-
tract from his diary reads:

We rang upon those little bells,

Four different peals to divert ourselves,
Grandsire. Old Doubles, Simonds and New,
And Faith we struck ’em good and true.

These methods are still being rung at
Bart’s and visitors are welcome to o#r
Thursday practices (commence 6.30 p.m.)
to join us and try their hand. Sunday
ringing is at 5.50 p.m., when visitors are
even more welcome. It is regretted that
due to the proximity of the tower to the
neurological wards of the hospital ringing
is kept to a minimum, and consequently
permission to ring at Bart’s is never given
to touring parties or organised outings.
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